
Page 1 of 2 

   

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 26, 2017 
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 
 

17C‐0505. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

17C‐0506.  Roll Call 

17C‐0507.  Establishment of Quorum 
17C‐0508.  Pledge of Allegiance 
17C‐0509.  Reports of Standing Committees 
17C‐0510.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 
  
  

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

None 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA CA17‐24 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

17C‐0511. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of December 11, 
2017  

3‐9  

 
17C‐0512. 

  
Approval of Agreement with Jo Daviess Country Fair Charities for Use of Grant 
Park for the 2018 Country Fair, October 4‐7, 2018 

10‐13 

Page 1 of 71



Page 2 of 2 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. January 4  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. January 8  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. January 10  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Grant Park Committee  Fri. January 19  10:30 A.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 

Please view the full City of Galena Calendar at www.cityofgalena.org  
 

Posted: Thursday, December 21, 2017 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By: 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

17C‐0513. 
  
Discussion and Possible Action on First Amendment to Lease of Waterworks 
Building 

 
14‐26 

 
17C‐0514. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Fiscal Year 2019‐2023 Capital Improvement 
Plan 

 
27‐65 

 
17C‐0515. 

 
Warrants 

66‐71 

 
17C‐0516. 

 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

 
17C‐0517. 

 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
17C‐0518. 

 
Mayor’s Report 

 

 
17C‐0519. 

 
Motion for Executive Session Including:  

 Section 2 (c) (11) – Pending, probable or imminent litigation  
 Section 2 (c) (21) Review of executive session minutes 

 
 
 

 
17C‐0520. 

 
Adjournment 

 

Page 2 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  11 December 2017 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 11 DECEMBER 2017 
 

17C-0482 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 11 December 2017.  
 
17C-0483 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, 
Westemeier and Renner 
 
17C-0484 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
17C-0485– PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
17C-0486 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
Turner Hall Committee – Next meeting will be held Thursday, December 14, 2017, 8:30 a.m. at 
Turner Hall.  At 11:00 a.m. the check from the Joe Miller Trust Fund, in the amount of $32,384.79, 
will be presented as part of the continuing agreement.   
 
17C-0487 – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
James Wirth, 121 S. High Street – Wirth requested contracts for the depot be deferred to the 
next meeting.  He advised an architect in Springfield is currently reviewing the proposal.  With 
minor modifications they feel the depot could be used for multiple purposes.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA17-23 
 
17C-0488 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
NOVEMBER 27, 2017 
 
17C-0489 – APPROVAL OF A REQUEST BY THE GALENA KIWANIS CLUB TO HOST THE 
FIRST ANNUAL GALENA KIWANIS RIVER TRAIL RUN ON THE GALENA RIVER TRAIL, 
MAY 19, 2018 
 
17C-0490 – ACCEPTANCE OF OCTOBER 2017 FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
17C-0491 – CHANGE ORDER #1 FOR THE EXTERIOR BRICK MASONRY REPAIR PROJECT 
AT TURNER HALL 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve Consent Agenda, CA17-23.         
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
            
  The motion carried.  

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

Page 3 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  11 December 2017 
 

17C-0470 – UPDATE ON GALENA RIVER WATERSHED-BASED PLANNING PROJECT 
 
Beth Baranski updated the Council on the Galena River Watershed-Based Planning Project.  The 
committee has been meeting monthly to go through background information.  They are beginning 
to put things together for the actual plan.  A soil and water inventory has been completed.  
Baranski presented copies to the council.  A meeting will be held on February 8th for all local 
governments.  The meeting will focus on projects and shared conversation of the role local 
governments can play.  Baranski invited Council to attend.  The meeting will be held at City Hall 
at 6:30 p.m.  
 
A meeting will be held on January 11th for land owners.  A farmer led group has been started.   
 
Water sampling was done in August and will be done again in the spring.  Initially the purpose 
was to look for nitrates, chemical fertilizers and animal waste.  No chemical fertilizer or animal 
waste was found.  There was definitely a human component.  They looked for pharmaceuticals 
and personal care products.  Medications were found.  Likely in the spring we will see things 
washed off of the land surface.   
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
17C-0492 – QUARTERLY PRESENTATION BY GREATER GALENA MARKETING INITIATIVE 
 
Chris Hamilton gave the quarterly presentation on the Greater Galena Marketing Initiative.   
 

 Room nights are up 2,019 more rooms this year as compared to the same period last 
year. 

 The property has been acquired to link the Galena Trail to the Grand River Trail. 
 Hamilton presented copies of the Corridor Conceptual Plan. 
 The new Sales Director has hit the ground running.  He is already securing group 

business.   
 

17C-0493 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON CLARIFICATION OF 
PREREQUISITES FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR GRACE EPISCOPAL 
CHURCH ADDITION PROJECT 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Fach to clarify the prerequisites for the issuance of a 
building permit for Grace Episcopal Church Addition Project as follows:  The Geotechnical Study 
was intended to include a slope stability study.     
 
Discussion:   Bernstein stated she listened to the recordings for the meeting of June 27th and 
July 25th.  On June 27 when this was first put before the council, the recommendation from the 
Zoning Board was to require a Geotechnical Study.  At the meeting four more requirements were 
added.  Bernstein stated during discussions she had said we should add a slope stability survey.  
Another Council member advised it would be included in the Geotechnical Study.     
 
On July 25th it was brought back to clarify that these prerequisites had to be met prior to the 
issuance of a building permit.  In reiterating those five prerequisites, Bernstein advised under item 
1 she reiterated a geotechnical study including a slope stability survey.  At that time a slope 
stability study was added to the Geo Technical Study.   
 
Hahn stated he didn’t recall a slope stability study being included.  A Geotechnical Study has 
been done and a Geotechnical Engineer will be on site at all times.  Hahn feels the best thing is 
to have a Geotechnical Engineer on site and available when digging.  Test holes were dug and all 
they found was hard rock.   
 
Renner stated his understanding was that the slope study was going to be determined by the 
Geotechnical Engineer.  If they felt it was needed, they would have done one.   

Page 4 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  11 December 2017 
 

 
 
Bernstein stated the issue on the table is to clarify what the council intended here.  To her it is 
clear that a slope stability didn’t need to be specified as it was clear it was to be a part of the 
Geotechnical Survey.   
 
Renner questioned what area would be surveyed.  Bernstein couldn’t answer that; however, she 
noted people came to the Council with concerns about safety of the project.  One concern being 
is the hill going to collapse?  Is it stable?  Council addressed several other concerns with the 
prerequisites.  The stability of the hill was the prime concern and that was the reason the council 
tried to address it.    
 
Council questioned if, during construction, the back wall behind the church would be dug into or 
removed in any way.  Matt Oldenburg advised the plain of the back wall of the addition is in line 
with the plain of the back wall of the existing church.  They do not plan to excavate into that area 
beyond the plain.   
 
Bernstein feels it was the intention to include the slope stability study in the geotechnical study.   
 
Fach questioned if the engineers report recommended a slope study.  Matt Oldenburg advised 
the report didn’t say a slope stability study was needed.  If they would have found it was needed, 
they would have called it out as a concern to be further studied.  They did not do that.  In the 
comments, they made a comment that the contractor needs to take measures to protect the slope 
stability where they are working.  This is an OSHA regulation to insure you are protecting your 
workers.  He also called out the Geotechnical Engineer needs to be on site during the entire 
excavation.  He would be observing while they were excavating and if earth retention systems 
need to be put in place, he would call that out at that time.   
 
Hahn stated he feels the TSC Report of September 8, 2017 does the justice.  He can’t see 
spending thousands of dollars more.  They will have an engineer on site watching what is being 
done.     
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach  
  NAYS:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier 
            
  The motion was denied.  
 
17C-0494 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON APPROVAL OF CONTRACTS FOR 
THE DEPOT RENOVATION PROJECT 
 

Table 1.   Depot Renovation: Summary of Low Quotes by Project Component 
 
Project Component  Company  Company Location  TOTAL 

Plumbing  Elite Plumbing  Galena  $20,381.00

Electric  Earl Thompson Masonry/Tim Bloom  Galena  $13,000.00

General Construction  White Construction  Galena  $13,800.00

Interior Painting  Beautiful Restorations  Galena  $8,475.00

Flooring  Knautz Flooring  Galena  $10,527.10

Attic Insulation  Spahn & Rose, White Construction  Dubuque/Galena  $13,959.00

Storm Windows  Adams Architectural, White Const.   Dubuque/Galena  $12,845.19

Interior Light Fixtures  Heritage Lighting   Dubuque  $4,556.00

Window Coverings  Vignette’s  Galena  $27,275.00

Voice and Data Cabling  BTS  Dubuque  $15,225.00

Phone System  BTS  Dubuque  $8,991.94

Page 5 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  11 December 2017 
 

 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Fach, to accept the bids in Table 1 in the amount of 
$161,378.17 and the following conditions as listed on page 23 of the packet:   
 

  Approve the 13 contracts listed in this report totaling $161,378.17.  
 

 Waive competitive bidding and accept the request for quotes 
process for those contracts that exceed $10,000. 

 

 Waive competitive bidding on the specialty trade contracts, including 
lighting supply, phone and data cabling, phone system, smoke, fire 
and security system, and audio‐visual system. 

 

 Authorize administrative approval of change orders not to exceed 
$2,500 individually or $15,000 total. 

 

 Do not execute the 13 contracts until written confirmation is 
received from GGMI that the organization will reimburse the City for 
$147,419.17 for contract costs, plus costs for change orders as 
required. 

 

 Payment from GGMI to the City of Galena should be made following 
the completion of each contract and not more than 30 days after 
invoicing from the City. 

 
 
Discussion:   None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
  ABSTAIN:  Lincoln       

      
  The motion carried.  
 
17C-0495 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 78:  SCHEDULE I 
“SPEED RESTRICTIONS” TO LOWER THE SPEED LIMIT ON MAIN STREET 
 
Motion:   Fach moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the first reading of an Ordinance 
amending Chapter 78:  Schedule I “Speed Restrictions” to lower the speed limit from 20-15 mph 
on Main Street from Water Street to Meeker Street.   
 
Discussion:  Council discussed and the majority didn’t feel the speed limit is a problem.   
 
Renner stated he would like to see speed limit signs posted on Main and Commerce Streets so 
people are aware of the speed limit.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach 
  NAYS:  Westemeier, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln 

Smoke, Fire, Security Systems  Security Products of Dubuque  Dubuque  $4,982.81

Audio Visual  Willis Computer Solutions  Galena  $7,360.13

    TOTAL  $161,378.17

Page 6 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  11 December 2017 
 

  ABSENT:  Hahn       
      

  The motion was denied.    
 
17C-0496 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A POLICY PROHIBITING 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT FOR THE CITY OF GALENA 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the first reading of an Ordinance 
adopting a policy prohibiting sexual harassment for the City of Galena.    
 
Discussion:  None.     
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
            
  The motion carried.  
 
17C-0497 – SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF THE 2017 TAX LEVY 
ORDINANCE FOR TAXES TO BE COLLECTED IN 2018 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the second reading of the 2017 Tax Levy 
Ordinance for taxes to be collected in 2018.   
 
Discussion:  None.       
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Bernstein, Renner  
  NAYS:  Fach, Westemeier  
            
  The motion carried.  
 
17C-0498 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the Warrants as presented, 17C-0498.   
  
Discussion:  Bernstein questioned what the bill to Tri-State Apparel for Recycle Magnets was 
for.  Moran advised that was for the printing of the recycling magnets distributed to citizens.   
 
Bernstein sated she also noticed the Police Department electric bill is still considerably higher.  
She questioned if there has been any decisions about zoning areas so they can be turned off.  
Moran advised preliminary numbers were developed which made it questionable if it would 
provide a cost savings, as the lights are already high efficiency.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn       

      
  The motion carried.  
 
17C-0499 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Thank you – Lincoln gave kudos to everyone involved with the luminaria and living windows.  It 
was a great event with lots of people downtown.  A great tradition! 
 
17C-0500 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Gear Street – The bids are out for Gear Street.  They are due back January 16th.  The plans and 
specs are on the city’s website.  Moran thanked Andy Lewis for his help in getting the bids out.   

Page 7 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  11 December 2017 
 

 
Next Meeting – Moran advised the next meeting will be held Tuesday, December 26th and not 
Monday as listed on the calendar.   
 
17C-04501 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner thanked everyone for both Fire in the Sky and Luminaria weekends.  The town 
was packed.  He was happy to see Alderman Hahn up and about with the use of a cane and 
wished all “Happy Holidays”.   
 
17C-0502 – MOTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Motion:   Lincoln moved, seconded by Kieffer, to recess to Executive Session to discuss the 
following: 
 

 Employee hiring, firing, compensation, discipline and performance, Section 2 (c) (1) 
 Review of Executive Session Minutes, Section 2 (c) (21) 

 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
The meeting recessed at 7:27 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 7:34 p.m. 
 
17C-0503 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON HIRING TO FILL THE POSITION OF 
PUBLIC WORKS LABORER 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the recommendation of the Public 
Works Director to hire Matthew Wienen for the Public Works Department at an hourly rate of 
$18.70 per hour with a start date of January 2, 2018.   
  
Discussion:  None.  
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
        
  The motion carried.  
 
17C-0504 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Lincoln moved, seconded by Hahn, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
            
  The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Page 8 of 71



Regular Board Meeting  11 December 2017 
 

 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 9 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        312 ½ North Main Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    December 18, 2017 

RE:    Country Fair Contract 
 
 
Jo Daviess Country Fair Charities proposes to utilize Grant Park on October 4, 5, 6 and 7 
for the annual Country Fair.  The proposed agreement for the use of the park is attached.  
The only changes from the 2017 agreement are the dates of the event.       
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   

Page 10 of 71



 

 AGREEMENT FOR USE OF GRANT PARK 
 

This Agreement made and entered into this ____ day of ____________, 2018   
between the City of Galena, a Municipal Corporation, (hereinafter referred to as "City") 
and the Jo Daviess County Country Fair Charities Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "user") 
for the exclusive use of Galena's Grant Park for a craft fair on October 4 and 5, 2018 
and the weekend of October 6 and 7, 2018. 
 
 It is mutually agreed that this Agreement grants the User and its exhibitor’s 
exclusive use of Grant Park for the sole and only purpose of sponsoring a craft fair. 
 
 In consideration of the privileges hereinafter granted by the City, User is hereby 
granted the right to occupy Grant Park for the purposes set forth below, subject to the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement: 
 
 1. City shall permit User the exclusive use of Grant Park for set up on 
October 4 and 5, 2018 and the weekend of October 6 and 7, 2018, to conduct a craft 
fair. Dogs will be restricted during the hours of Country Fair October 6 and 7, 2018. 
Service Dogs for persons with disabilities will be permitted when accompanying their 
owners. 
 
 2. User shall be required to deposit the amount of Five Hundred and 00/100 
Dollars ($500) with the City of Galena as and for a security deposit for the premises.  
City shall have the right, but not the obligation to apply the security deposit in whole or 
in part as payment for such amounts as are reasonably necessary to remedy User’s 
defaults of the covenants or agreements contained herein or to correct damages that 
occur to the Park.  User’s potential liability is not limited to the amount of the security 
deposit. 
 
 3. User shall be responsible for park setup, daily clean-up and maintenance 
related to the use and occupancy of Grant Park.  User shall not be responsible for 
damage to Park structures, equipment, grass and foliage. 
 
 4. User agrees to pay to City for the rights and privileges herein granted, 
sum equal to 50 percent of the net gate donation to the Fair for each day of the Fair, 
with the total not to exceed $10,000.00  
 
The amount due to the City must be settled within (30) days of the Fair. 
 
 5. User agrees that authorized City personnel shall have access to the 
premises at all times. 
 
  
 
 

Page 11 of 71



 

         6. User further agrees to indemnify and save harmless City, its officers, 
agents and employees from any and all claims, causes of actions and suits accruing or 
resulting from any damage, injury or loss to any person or persons, caused by, arising 
out of, or in any way connected with exercise of the User (and its exhibitors) of the 
privileges here granted. 
  
 7. It is mutually agreed that this Agreement and the privileges granted here 
or any part of this Agreement cannot be assigned or otherwise disposed of without 
written consent of the City. 
  
 8. It is mutually understood and agreed that no alteration or variation of the 
terms of this Agreement shall be valid, unless made in writing and signed by the parties, 
and that no oral understandings or agreements not incorporated here and no alterations 
or variations of the terms of this Agreement, unless made in writing and signed by the 
parties, shall be binding upon any of the parties. 
 
 9. The privileges here granted shall be granted according to the laws of the 
State of Illinois and the ordinances of the City of Galena. 
 
 10. The City reserves the right to regulate parking of all motor vehicles in 
Grant Park.  No automobiles, trucks or trailers will be permitted to park overnight at 
Grant Park without a special vehicle permit, issued through the Chief of Police. 
 
 11. All food and drink stands must comply with applicable State and local food 
laws. 
 
 12. Dumpsters will be furnished and disposal fees paid by User; User must 
keep covered, at all times, garbage cans and dumpsters.  User shall keep Grant Park 
free of refuse, litter and waste matter. 
 
 13. User shall provide and pay for port-a-potties in Grant Park in a sufficient 
number to accommodate the anticipated crowd as specified in the Illinois Plumbing 
Code. 
 
 14. User will require all exhibitors to post in a conspicuous manner, at their 
stand, a valid itinerant merchant permit, issued pursuant to Chapter 110 of the Galena 
Code of Ordinances and an Illinois sales tax permit. 
 
 15. All materials and equipment of User and exhibitors must be removed from 
Grant Park within twenty-four (24) hours of the closing of the Craft Fair. 
  
         16.     User will provide insurance coverage insuring the Park and all facilities 
thereon for all hazards in an amount not less than $1,000,000 and furthermore, agrees 
to name the City of Galena as an additional insured on said policy.  Said insurance is for 
the purpose of insuring both User and the City against any liability or other claims that 
may be made due to acts occurring in or on the aforedescribed real estate or in 
connection with any activities conducted thereon.  A copy of said coverage shall be 
provided to the City prior to the date of the Craft Fair. 

Page 12 of 71



 

 
 17. User will provide security service and will exercise reasonable precaution 
for the protection of City property and the property of the exhibitors. 
 
 18. This contract may be renewed for the following year upon receipt of 
written request by Jo Daviess County Country Fair Charities Inc.- Galena Country Fair 
within fifteen (15) days of close of the event. 
 
IN WITNESS the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the ____ day 
of ____________, 2017. 
 
 
    JO DAVIESS COUNTY COUNTRY FAIR CHARITIES INC. 
 
 
 
BY:_____________________________  BY:_____________________________ 
        Terry Renner, Mayor            Ron Smith, Chair Person 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 13 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council   

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    December 19, 2017 

RE:    Waterworks Lease 
 
 
At the end of November, the operation of the Jo Daviess County Convention and Visitors 
Bureau (CVB) was suspended as Greater Galena Marketing Inc. became the visitors’ bureau for 
the county.  Consequently, the CVB no longer occupies the City‐owned Waterworks Building on 
Park Avenue.  The County proposes to modify the lease for the Waterworks Building to permit 
the County to use the building for the storage of records.   
 
As you know, the City and County have worked together over the past several months to 
complete maintenance to the Waterworks Building.  The work included interior and exterior 
painting, tuckpointing, and the replacement of the roof.  The County is reimbursing the City for 
the cost of the maintenance in accordance with the 1995 lease that extends through April 2025.  
The County made a sizable investment at the outset of the lease to completely renovate the 
building for office use.   
 
The proposed “First Amendment to the Lease of Waterworks Building” acknowledges that the 
CVB no longer occupies the building and allows the County to use the building for storage 
through the remaining term of the lease.  All other terms of the lease would remain in effect. 
 
I am attaching the request from the county, the current lease, and the proposed amendment.    
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you.  

Page 14 of 71



1

Mark Moran

From: Reimer, Dan <dreimer@jodaviess.org>
Sent: Thursday, December 07, 2017 4:51 PM
To: Mark Moran
Cc: rjwinkelhake@gmail.com
Subject: Waterworks Building Lease

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Categories: Email Response Needed

Mark, 
  
This email is to follow‐up with you on the Waterworks Building lease. 
  
As I mentioned last week, Jo Daviess County is interested in continuing to lease the Water Works building from the City 
of Galena. We understand that if the County continues to lease the building from the City, we will need either a new 
lease agreement or an amendment to the current agreement. 
  
The current  lease agreement specifies that the County shall use the premises solely for the purpose of operation of the 
Galena/Jo Daviess County Convention and Visitor’s Bureau. The County adopted a resolution on June 13, 2017 that 
suspended the Galena/Jo Daviess County Convention & Visitor’s Bureau indefinitely, effective November 30, 2017.  
  
The County has worked cooperatively with the City of Galena to honor the terms and conditions of the current lease 
agreement and agreed to fund more than $45,000 of repairs and improvements to the building, this includes the 
purchase and installation of a new air conditioning unit. The County has considered possible alternative uses for the 
building and at this time we would like to use the Waterworks Building and adjacent structure for purposes of storage.  
  
We respectfully request that the City consider leasing the Waterworks Building and adjacent building to the County with 
substantially the same terms and conditions as included in the original lease. The initial term of the original lease was for 
30 years, effective April 30,, 1995. We request that the new or amended lease be continued to April 30, 2025, subject to 
possible extension and that consideration for rent be $1.00, the same amount as required in the original lease. 
  
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
  
Thank you, 
Dan 
  

Dan Reimer, County Administrator 
Jo Daviess County Administrator's Office 
330 N Bench St. 
Galena IL 61036 
Phone 815-777-6557 Fax 815-777-2285 
Email countyadministrator@jodaviess.org  
Website www.jodaviess.org  

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain 
confidential and privileged information.  Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited.  If you are not the intended 

Page 15 of 71



Page 16 of 71



Page 17 of 71



Page 18 of 71



Page 19 of 71



Page 20 of 71



Page 21 of 71



Page 22 of 71



Page 23 of 71



1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE OF WATERWORKS BUILDING 
 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT, dated this _____ day of ________________, 2017, amends the Lease 
for the Waterworks Building, 720 Park Avenue, dated May 12, 1995 (the “Lease”), attached 
hereto and made part hereof; 
 
BETWEEN:  

The City of Galena 
 

and 
 

Jo Daviess County 
 
Background 
 

1. In 1995, Jo Daviess County (the “County”) leased the Waterworks Building at 720 Park 
Avenue from the City of Galena (the “City”).  The County renovated the entire building 
prior to occupancy by the Jo Daviess County Convention and Visitors Bureau (the 
“CVB”).  The CVB occupancy continued until November 30, 2017 when the agency was 
suspended from operation indefinitely by the County. 

 
2. In the summer and fall of 2017, the County and City undertook repairs and maintenance 

to the Waterworks Building at a cost of more than $45,000.  The cost of the repairs and 
maintenance were paid in full by the County.   

 
3. With the CVB no longer in operation, the County seeks to modify the terms of the Lease 

to use the Waterworks Building for storage of County property instead of administrative 
offices.       
 

4. The parties desire to amend the Lease subject to the terms and conditions set forth in 
this First Amendment (the “Amendment”). 
 

5. This Amendment is the first amendment to the Lease. 
 

IN CONSIDERATION OF the parties agreeing to amend their obligations in the existing Lease, 
and other valuable considerations, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 
the Parties agree to keep, perform and fulfill the promises, conditions, and agreements below: 
 
Amendments 
 

6. The City and the County agree that, effective November 30, 2017, the CVB ceased 
operations as contemplated in Paragraph 5 of the Lease. 

Page 24 of 71



2 
 

  
7. The City and the County agree that the County will assume the use, rights, and 

obligations, under the Lease as provided for in Paragraph 5 (a). 
 

8. The City agrees that the County may use the Waterworks Building and the outbuilding 
on the property for storage of County property.  Said storage shall not be clearly visible 
from the streets adjacent to the property or otherwise detract from the appearance of 
the Waterworks Building.   
 

No Other Changes 

 

9. Except as expressly set forth in this Agreement, all the terms and conditions of the Lease 

remain unchanged and shall continue in full force and effect.  If there is a conflict 

between this Amendment and the Lease, the terms of this Amendment will prevail. 

Miscellaneous Terms 
 
10. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Amendment will have the meanings 

ascribed to them in the Lease.  Headings are inserted for the convenience of the parties 
only and are not to be considered when interpreting this Amendment.  Words in the 
singular mean and include the plural and vice versa.  Words in the masculine include the 
feminine and vice versa.  No regard for gender is intended by the language of this 
Amendment. 

 
Governing Law 

11. Subject to the terms of the Amendment, it is the intention of the parties that this 

Amendment and all suits and special proceedings under this Amendment, be construed 

in accordance with and governed, to the exclusion of the law of any forum, by the laws 

of the State of Illinois, without regard to the jurisdiction in which any action or special 

proceedings may be instituted. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have duly affixed their signatures under hand and seal on 

this _____ day of ___________________, 2017.   

   

Page 25 of 71



3 
 

             

City of Galena 

_________________________________       Per: ______________________________________ 

WITNESS: _________________________ 

 

Jo Daviess County  

________________________________         Per: ______________________________________ 

WITNESS: _________________________ 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 26 of 71



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    December 19, 2017 

RE:    2018 Capital Improvement Plan   
 
 
I am presenting for your review the proposed Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for fiscal years 
2019‐23.  The plan includes proposed departmental projects and purchases exceeding $10,000 
over the next five years.  While the plan attempts to be realistic about available funding, 
completing the projects and funding the purchases would be subject to the availability of 
funding as determined during the annual budget process. 
 
I suggest that you take time to review the CIP so we could begin discussions about the plan at 
Monday’s meeting.  I am hopeful that you would approve the plan, with any changes that you 
identify, no later than the January 8 meeting.  The CIP is a very important component of the 
budget preparation process that will begin in January. 
 
I understand that reviewing the CIP on an iPad is challenging. If you would like a paper copy of 
the plan, please let me know.   
 
I look forward to your discussion about the CIP.  Please let me know if you have any questions.   
  

 

 

Page 27 of 71



 

 
     

 

 

City of Galena, Illinois 
 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Fiscal Years 2019 – 2023   

 

“Planned expenditures for systematically 
constructing, maintaining, upgrading and 
replacing the community’s physical 
plant”   

 
 

DRAFT 1 
December 26, 2017 

 
Mayor Terry Renner 

 
Alderpersons: 

 
 Pam Bernstein 
Charles Fach 
 Robert Hahn 
Jerry Kieffer 
Todd Lincoln 

Jerry Westemeier 
 

 

City Administrator, Mark Moran 

Page 28 of 71



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  Reference  Page 

 
The Capital Improvement Plan   

   
1 

 
A Capital Improvement Defined   

   
1 

 
Developing the Galena CIP   

   
2 

 
Individual Project Descriptions   

 
A1 

 
7 

 
Evaluation of Projects Using Criteria   

 
B1 

 
18 

 
Recommended Capital Improvement Plan   

 
C1 

 
20 

 
 

   

APPENDICIES     

 
Appendix A.  5‐Year Street Improvement Program   

 
APX. A 

 
22 

 
Appendix A1.  5‐Year Street Improvement Program Maps   

 
APX. A1 

 
23 

 
Appendix A2.  5‐Year Alley Improvement Plan  

 
APX. A2 

 
28 

 
Appendix B.  Non‐Home Rule Sales Tax (1/2%) Street Program (Completed Projects)   

 
APX. B 

 
29 

 
Appendix C:  Non‐Home Rule Sales Tax (1/2%) Projected Fund Balance    

 
APX. C 

 
30 

 
Appendix D.  Public Works Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. D 

 
31 

 
Appendix E.  Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan  

 
APX. E 

 
32 

 
Appendix F.  Police Department Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. F 

 
33 

 
Appendix G.  Water and Sewer Department Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. G 

 
34 

 
Appendix H.  Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan 

 
APX. H 

 
35 

 
Appendix I.  Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan 

 
APX. I 

 
36 

Page 29 of 71



THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 
A capital improvement plan (CIP) is a multi‐year schedule of municipal improvements.  The schedule usually 

covers a period of five or six years, but may extend to 10 years and beyond.  The Galena CIP spans a five‐year 

period  beginning May  1,  2018  (Fiscal  Year  2018‐19).    This  plan  sets  forth  the  proposed  expenditures  for 

systematically  constructing,  maintaining,  upgrading  and  replacing  the  community’s  physical  plant  or 

infrastructure,  and  includes  vehicles  and  other  mobile  equipment.    Capital  improvement  projects  are 

typically major, infrequent expenditures, such as the construction of a new facility or rehabilitation or major 

repair of an existing facility.  With the relatively small size of our community and budget, this CIP recognizes a 

project as small as $10,000 as a capital project.    Individual projects  from the adopted plan should become 

part of the capital budget for their respective departments.   

 

In order  to be useful as a  tool  for budgeting and sound  financial management,  the plan must be updated 

annually by reviewing existing projects, proposing new projects and extending the program by an additional 

year.   This process should also consider the short term and  long‐term effects of the expenditures and any 

associated debt on fund balances and cash flow for operations.  The CIP is considered essential for managing 

and coordinating the efficient expenditure of Galena’s public resources. 

  
A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT DEFINED 
 
A capital improvement project is defined as a major expenditure that includes one or more of the following: 

 
1. Any acquisition of land for a public purpose; 
 
2. Any construction of a new facility (e.g., a public building, water lines, pavilion etc…) or an addition to, 

or extension of, such a facility; 
 
3. A  rehabilitation  (i.e.,  something which  is  infrequent and would not be  considered annual or other 

recurrent maintenance) or major repair of all or a part of a building,  its grounds, or a facility, or of 
equipment, provided that the cost is $10,000 or more and the improvement will have a useful life of 
10 years or more; 

 
4. Purchase or major equipment (i.e., items with a cost – individually or in total – of $10,000 or more), 

which have a useful life of five years or more, including vehicles (rolling stock) if part of a systematic 
replacement plan; 

 
5. Any  planning,  feasibility,  engineering,  or  capital  design  study  related  to  an  individual  capital 

improvement project or  to a program  that  is  implemented  through  individual capital  improvement 
projects. 

Page 30 of 71



 
 
DEVELOPING THE GALENA CIP 
 
The necessity of a CIP was identified in 1991 as a recommendation of the Galena Comprehensive Plan.  The 

city’s  first  CIP  was  developed  in  1999  and  has  been  largely  implemented.    In  2003,  the  Galena 

Comprehensive Plan called for the update of the CIP and, in 2004 the city council identified the CIP update as 

one of the top priorities during the visioning and four‐year goal setting process.  The CIP was again updated 

in 2007 and each year since.   The staff and administration have made a commitment to updating the plan 

annually.    This  section  generally  describes  the  process  of  developing  the  2018  Galena  CIP  and  the 

components of the plan. 

 

Staff Involvement 

Developing  the  recommended  capital  improvement  plan was  a  lengthy, multi‐step  process.    The  process 

began with each department head identifying the projects and major purchases that he or she would like to 

see completed over the next five years in his or her respective area(s) of responsibility.   Department heads 

also estimated the cost of each project or purchase, described the relationship to other projects and assigned 

the projects a priority rating.  More than 90 projects and purchases totaling $7.6 million were submitted for 

the  five‐year  period.    Each  project  is  described  in  a  narrative  and  the  estimated  cost  is  identified  in  the 

“Attachment A:  Individual Project Descriptions”. 

 

Evaluating Projects 

Two separate methods were utilized in an attempt to demonstrate the relative importance of each project or 

purchase.   First, each project or purchase was reviewed against criterion ranging from health and safety to 

resource conservation.  Each criterion used is described in detail in Figure 1, “Criteria for Evaluating Capital 

Improvement  Requests”  on  the  next  page.    The  results  of  the  evaluation  are  shown  in  Attachment  B, 

“Evaluation  of Projects Using  Criteria”.    Second,  each  department  head  ranked  each  project  as  either  a 

“high”,  “medium” or  “low” priority.   Combined, both methods of evaluation were useful  for  showing  the 

relative importance or need of each project or purchase. 

Page 31 of 71



FIGURE 1.  CRITERIA FOR EVALUATING  
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT REQUESTS 

 
The  following  criteria  were  used  to  evaluate  each  of  the  proposed  capital  improvement  projects  or 
purchases.   The  results of  the evaluation  are  shown  as a matrix,  “Table 2. Evaluation of Requests Using 
Criteria”. 
 

Risk to Public Safety or Health.  To protect against a clear and possibly immediate risk to public safety 
or public health. 

 

Deteriorated Facility.  An investment that deals with a deteriorated facility or piece of equipment. The 
action  taken may be either: 1)  reconstruction or extensive  rehabilitation  to extend  its useful  life  to 
avoid or to postpone replacing it with a new and costlier one; or 2) replacement of the facility or piece 
of equipment with a new one. 

 

Systematic Replacement.  An investment that replaces or upgrades a facility or piece of equipment as 
part of a systematic replacement program. This investment assumes the equipment will be replaced at 
approximately the same level of service. Some increase in size to allow for normal growth or increased 
demand is anticipated. 

 

Improvement of Operating Efficiency.  An investment that substantially and significantly improves the 
operating  efficiency  of  a  department.  Or  an  expenditure  that  has  a  very  favorable  return  on 
investment  with  a  promise  of  reducing  existing,  or  future,  increases  in  operating  expenses  (e.g., 
introduction of a new or improved technology).

 

Coordination.   1) An expenditure  that  is necessary  to  insure  coordination with  another CIP project 
(e.g., scheduling a sewer project to coincide with a street reconstruction project so that the street  is 
not dug up a year after  it  is completed); 2) A project  that  is necessary  to comply with requirements 
imposed by others  (e.g., a court order, a change  in  federal or state  law, an agreement with another 
governmental jurisdiction or agency); or 3) A project that meets established goals or objectives of the 
City Council and Mayor. 

 

Equitable Provision of Services, Facilities.  1) An investment that serves the special needs of a segment 
of  the community's population  identified by public policy as deserving of special attention  (e.g.,  the 
handicapped,  the  elderly,  or  low‐  and  moderate‐income  persons);  or  2)  An  investment  that, 
considering  existing  services  or  facilities,  makes  equivalent  facilities  or  services  available  to 
neighborhoods or population groups that are now undeserved in comparison with residents generally.

 

Protection and Conservation of Resources.  1) A project that protects natural resources that are at risk 
of  being  reduced  in  amount  or  quality;  or  2)  A  project  that  protects  the  investment  in  existing 
infrastructure  against  excessive  demand  or  overload  that  threatens  the  capacity  or  useful  life  of  a 
facility or piece of equipment. 

 

New or Substantially Expanded Facility.  Construction, or acquisition, of a new facility (including land) 
or new equipment, or major expansion thereof, that provides a service, or a level of service, not now 
available. 

Page 32 of 71



Revenue Sources and Projections 

The Galena CIP is utilized for planning and budgeting purposes and not as a rigid purchasing plan nor project 

schedule.  Therefore, the while the plan identifies likely revenue sources, it does not contain projections of 

available revenue for implementation of the plan.  One exception is the Street Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

where a half percent sales tax is dedicated for streets and related infrastructure.  Detailed revenue/expense 

analysis is performed to insure the proposed projects may be accomplished with available revenue from the 

fund.  Sales tax funded projects and all the CIP’s prioritized projects should be evaluated for inclusion in the 

city’s operating budget each fiscal year.     

 

Abbreviations are used throughout the plan for both revenue sources and departments.   The abbreviations 

are shown in Figures 2 and 3 below. 

                                                 
          Figure 2.                                           Figure 3. 

                           Revenue Sources Abbreviations                                       Department Abbreviations 
 

Revenue Source  Abbreviation Department Abbreviation

General Fund Cash  GF Public Works DPW
General Fund Financing  GFF Engineering  ENG
Motor Fuel Tax  MFT Turner Hall TH
Flood Control Cash  FC Administration ADM
Water Enterprise Cash  WTC Flood Control  FLD
Water Enterprise Financing  WTF Water  WAT
Sewer Enterprise Cash  SWC Sewer SEW
Sewer Enterprise Financing  SWF Parks PAR
Fire Department Cash  FD Police POL
Grants  GT Fire FD
    Swimming Pool SP

 
Recommended Plan  

After  identifying all  the potential  capital projects and purchases, describing  them  in detail and evaluating 

their  importance,  the  final plan was developed.   The plan  is presented as “Attachment C: Recommended 

Capital  Improvement Plan”.   The plan was recommended to the Mayor and City Council on December 26, 

2017 and approved on ___________________, 2016.  Again, the projects and purchases from the final plan 

should be incorporated into the annual operating budget as revenues permit.   

 

Page 33 of 71



Summary 

The  importance of  implementing and updating  the Capital  Improvement Plan cannot be over‐emphasized.  

Using the same process described herein, the Capital Improvement Plan will continue to be updated annually 

to span a full five‐year period.   New capital  improvement requests will be submitted by department heads 

for  evaluation  and  inclusion  in  the  updated  plan.    With  guidance  from  the  Fund  Balance  Policy,  the 

Comprehensive Plan, and constituents, elected officials will decide which projects and purchases  from  the 

recommended Capital Improvement Plan will be included in the annual budget.  

 

Page 34 of 71



CIP PROPOSAL DESCRIPTIONS AND JUSTIFICATIONS OVERVIEW 
 
In the following section, every CIP project that has been proposed by the various departments of the City is 
described in detail.  Criteria, including the recommendations of the Galena Comprehensive Plan are applied 
to assess whether a particular project is justified.  Each project is defined in the following format:    
 

Project Title:       Name of the project as used throughout the CIP. 
 
Department:      Name of the department that proposed the project. 
 
Date Submitted:  The date the project was proposed. (Nearly all the projects in this first year of 

the plan were also proposed this year.)   
 
Project Priority:  The priority of the project relative to other projects within the department. 
 
Project Description:    Description of the project. 
 
CIP Evaluation Criteria:   A list of the applicable criterion from the following page, Figure 1, “Evaluation 

Criteria for Capital Budget Requests”.  The criteria are used to evaluate the 
importance of the project relative to other projects.       
  

Comprehensive Plan:  A statement of whether or not the project can be directly justified by the 
Galena Comprehensive Plan and, if so, a page number and an excerpt from the 
plan. 

 
Multi‐year:  Identification of whether the project will take more than one year to complete. 
 
Coordination:  Identification of whether the project is dependent on one or more other CIP 

projects and, if so, a description of the related project(s). 
 
Cost Estimate:      The estimated cost of the project. 
 
Basis of Cost Estimate:   Identification of how the cost estimate was derived. 
 
Funding Source:  Identification of the proposed funding for the project.  Possible funding sources 

include, but are not limited to:  
 

 General Fund Reserves  Water Enterprise Cash 

 General Fund Financing  Water Enterprise Financing 

 Motor Fuel Tax   Sewer Enterprise Reserves 

 Flood Control Cash   Sewer Enterprise Financing 

 Capital Projects Fund Reserves   Grants 

 Capital Projects Fund Financing  Donations
  

Page 35 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

PUBLIC WORKS  

Project Title:
Department: Public Works/Engineering 
Date Submitted: December 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Equity Provision, Coordination, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: P. 108 "Budget for road improvements through the CIP process."
Multi‐Year: No
Coordination: Yes.  Projects are scheduled to coincide with underground utility work as much as possible.  
Cost Estimate: $1,589,700
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimates based on measured quantities and prices from recent projects
Funding Source: Capital Projects Fund (Sales Tax Fund)

 

Project Title: Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: December 2008
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Public Safety, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference 
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $320,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: Revolving Loan Fund Grant

Project Title: Paint Highway 20 bridge railings
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $25,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $35,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund
   

5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A)

ATTACHMENT A. INDIVIDUAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS (FY 2019‐2023)

The steel stairway from the Highway 20 Bridge to the Depot Parking lot was painted in 2016.  The proposed project would be to paint 

all of the steel railings on the US 20 bridge to match.  

Includes all street improvement work planned for the five‐year plan period.  Projects to completed with the non‐home rule sales tax 

revenues are listed in the 5‐Year Street Improvement Plan and detailed in Appendix C.  

Replace deteriorated concrete sidewalks and crosswalks in the downtown.   The replacement plan is based on the study and 

recommendations by MSA Professional Services. 

Replace approach structure on Meeker St pedestrian bridge

Replace deteriorated elevated concrete walkway that spans about 20 feet on the west end of the bridge and the same on the east end.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A1

Page 36 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: December 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $10,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: December 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $10,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Health Safety, New, Expanded Facility, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with street project.
Cost Estimate: $120,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: Motor Fuel Tax

Project Title:
Department: Public Works 

Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $75,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate
Funding Source: Shuttle Fund

Commerce Street parking lot resurfacing

Resurfacing of the City parking lot between Commerce Street and Water Street.  The project could include reshaping the lot to 

integrate Washington Street into the lot so all of the spaces would be "pay to park" spaces.  Landscaping should be considered. 

Replace deteriorated storm sewer trench inlet located on Prospect Street just south of Hill Street.  The drain crosses the full width of 

Prospect Street.

Prospect Street at Hill Street storm sewer replacement

Repair headwall at top of Green Street Steps

Gear Street sidewalk

Remove loose parge on headwall at top of Green Street steps, repair wall as needed, and apply new parge.

Install new sidewalk from West Street to the north to existing sidewalk at US Highway 20.  This sidewalk will be coordinated with the 

Gear Street construction project.  The sidewalk has been designed with the street project and is currently out for bid.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A2

Page 37 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: December 2017
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $30,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes.  Design, funding, and construction.
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $73,500
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  
Funding Source: Motor Fuel Tax

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2011
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $40,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title: Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone

Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New, Expanded Facility, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Could be completed in phases
Coordination: No   
Cost Estimate: $47,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Replace the concrete steps and railings from Main Street to Bench Street on Green Street.  The current steps have been repeatedly 

repaired and are continuing to deteriorate.

Dewey Avenue bridge replacement

Construction of five feet wide sidewalk from the  intersection of U.S. Highway 20 and Oldenburg Lane to the beginning of Cobblestone 

Boulevard.  The proposed sidewalk will link the bike path along U.S. Highway 20 to the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision.

Replace Green Street steps from Main to Bench

Additional parking at Recreation Park

Add diagonal or perpendicular parking on the east side of the entry road to the pool.  Parking could start in front of the Public Works 

building and extend to the area across from the playground.  

Replace the bridge over Hughlett's Creek on Dewey Avenue.  The bridge has been inspected and found to be in poor condition.  The 

project will be coordinated by the County Engineer and paid for with a combination of federal, county and city funds.  

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A3

Page 38 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Annual sidewalk/steps replacement program
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 1999
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Public Safety, Equitable Provision of Facilities, New Facilities

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes 
Coordination: Yes.  Initiate program after study/inventory is complete.
Cost Estimate: $50,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Completed inventory of one ward.
Funding Source: General Fund 

Project Title: Wayfinding signage project
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated facility, Public Safety, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with highway and street projects.
Cost Estimate: $106,500
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Public Works
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes 
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $613,200
Basis of Cost Estimate: Current cost of vehicles plus inflation factor 
Funding Source: General Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Flood Control

ENGINEERING

Project Title:
Department: Engineering
Date Submitted: January 2017

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Resource Conservation, Operating Efficiency, New Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $8,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate 
Funding Source: Grant

Installation of a battery pack on the interior of City Hall.  The battery would store surplus power generated from the rooftop solar 

array.  The stored power would be used when the solar array is not producing power.  This project should use grant funding.   

Project to improve wayfinding from the highway down to the pedestrian level.  Project includes consulting services for an existing 

conditions assessment, systems strategy, design, cost estimates, and plans for bidding.   It is anticipated that the sign fabrication and 

installation would be phased over multiple years. 

Public Works Rolling Stock Plan (See Appendix D)

Battery Storage for City Hall Solar 

Systematic replacement of public works vehicles and equipment.

P. 112 "Investigate the rehabilitation of sidewalks under the CIP process.  This could include a discussion of possible financing 

mechanisms such as cost sharing or use of the assessment process."

Systematic replacement of deteriorated sidewalks and public stairways throughout the community.  The replacement schedule should 

be based on the results of the comprehensive inventory, condition assessment and prioritization.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A4

Page 39 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

FLOOD CONTROL

Project Title:
Department: Flood Control
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Deteriorated Facility, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No 
Cost Estimate: $35,850  
Basis of Cost Estimate: Contract cost
Funding Source: Flood Control Fund

 

WATER

Project Title: Update SCADA system and computer
Department: Water 
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No 
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $10,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: Paint and upgrade water tower at Well #5 (Franklin Street)
Department: Water 
Date Submitted: November 2006
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $420,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: East Side Water System DSI‐Park Ave water main
Department: Water
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes
Cost Estimate: $375,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: 2015 estimate from consulting engineer
Funding Source: Water Fund

In 2006, the water tower on Franklin Street was professionally inspected inside and out.  Detailed recommendations were made for 

repairing, upgrading and painting the tower.  Completing the work in the short term will be less expensive than if the facility continues 

to degrade, but funding availability will dictate timing.  

No direct reference.

Update the operating software and hardware for the computer system used to monitor and control the water, wastewater and storm 

sewer systems. 

No direct reference.

Replace 2,225 feet of 6" and 4" water main with 10" water main in order to resolve a low pressure issue at the north end of Park 

Avenue on the east side of the river.  The project is more fully described on page 5‐1 of the 2015 Water System Study Report prepared 

by IIW Engineers and Surveyors.

Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan

50% share of cost of trading‐in the Public Works end loader every other year.  

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A5

Page 40 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: East Side Water System DS2‐Highway 20 water main
Department: Water
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes
Cost Estimate: $85,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: 2015 estimate from consulting engineer
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: East Side Water System DS3‐south pressure reduction station
Department: Water
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes
Cost Estimate: $200,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: 2015 estimate from consulting engineer
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: East Side Water System WS1‐new well and pump house
Department: Water
Date Submitted: October 2004
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes
Cost Estimate: $1,635,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: 2015 estimate from consulting engineer
Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: Water and Sewer Rolling Stock Plan (See Appendix G)
Department: Water and Sewer

Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facilities, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with Public Works Rolling Stock Plan
Cost Estimate: $160,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Current cost plus inflation factor
Funding Source: Water and Sewer Funds

Install 900 feet of 6" water main and a 6" pressure reduction station between Bouthillier Street and US Highway 20 in the Fourth Street 

Systematic replacement of water and sewer vehicles and rolling equipment.

Replace 350 feet of 4" water main with 6" water main under US Highway 20 between Third Street and Fourth Street. This improvement 

is designed to resolve a low pressure issue in the area of the improvement.  The project is more fully described on page 5‐1 of the 2015 

Water System Study Report prepared by IIW Engineers and Surveyors.

Construct a new well and pump house on the east side of the Galena River adjacent to the Horseshoe Mound reservoir to provide a 

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A6

Page 41 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

SEWER

Project Title: Replace controller for ultraviolet disinfection 
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $16,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title:
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2011
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Public Health and Safety, Operating Efficiency, New/Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $110,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Inflow and infiltration study
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2010
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: Yes, implement recommendations in future year(s)
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $20,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title:

Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: January 2011
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation, Health Safety, New Facility 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $240,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Consulting engineer's estimate
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

West end diversion sewer

Replace the original controller from 2001 on the UV disinfection device.  

Installation of a gravity sewer on Park Avenue, Johnson Street and along the railroad tracks to Jackson Street.  The sewer would be a 

gravity‐flow option to the pumped sewer that is in place and functioning properly.   The project would convert approximately 12 

properties from the pump system to gravity. 

Professional study to determine points of inflow and infiltration of water into the sewer system.   Reducing inflow and infiltration can 

Bouthillier Street lift station/Park Avenue sewer main 

Installation of a new sewer main near US 20 and Bartell Drive to divert the sewer flow from the west end to the Hughlett's sewer main.  

This diversion will remove considerable flow from the sewer main on Franklin Street in the area of the schools where sewer backups 

have repeatedly occurred during heavy rains.  Easement acquisition may be necessary to install the diversion sewer.  

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A7

Page 42 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement
Department: Sewer Fund

October 2004
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $110,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Similar projects
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension 
Department: Sewer
Date Submitted: October 2004
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Equitable Provision of Services, Health Safety

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $220,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Similar projects
Funding Source: Sewer Fund

PUBLIC SAFETY

Project Title:
Department: Police 
Date Submitted: December 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $12,500
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate based on current costs of new vehicles plus inflation factor
Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:
Department: Police 
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $149,800
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate based on current costs of new vehicles plus inflation factor
Funding Source: General Fund

P. 115 "Identify grant funding and other outside sources that will aid in purchasing capital equipment and the construction of new 

facilities, if they are determined to be necessary."

No direct reference.

Replace under sized and deteriorated sewer main in the Hughlett Creek valley below Dewey Avenue.

Install sanitary sewer main in the area of Madison Street and Fifth Street to convert eight homes from septic to public sewer.  This is 

New Police radios

Police Rolling Stock Plan

Systematic plan to replace squad cars in the Police Department.   Replacement plan should be based on operating cost per mile, 

P. 113  "Where feasible, connect all residences not currently served with sanitary sewer and water to the City's system to protect the 

public health and safety of the community and the City's water supply."

Purchase 18 new portable radios for Police Department to replace current radios that are approximately 10 years old.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A8

Page 43 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

FIRE DEPARTMENT

Project Title: Paint exterior of building and replace windows
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2010
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $50,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Project Title: Replace bunker gear
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $150,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Project Title:
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $150,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund

Project Title: Training center classroom building
Department: Fire
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, New Facility, Health Safety 
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference
Multi‐year: No   
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $960,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Architect's Estimate
Funding Source: Fire Fund, not‐for‐profit Volunteer Fire Department 

Paint exterior of Fire Station and install storm windows.

Replace outer protective clothing for all fire fighters.  

Replace self contained breathing apparatus (SCBA)

Replace SCBA gear

No direct reference.

Begin construction of new multi‐purpose classroom building with vehicle bay.    

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A9

Page 44 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan
Department: Fire 
Date Submitted: January 2017
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $633,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Review of current costs plus inflation
Funding Source: Fire Fund, borrowing

PARKS AND RECREATION

Project Title: Grant Park Restoration
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: December 2017
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement
Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference 
Multi‐year: No  
Coordination: No  
Cost Estimate: $50,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Annual amount
Funding Source: Park Fund 

Project Title: Construction of Galena River Trail: Phase 3 to Aiken
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: November 2006
Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Expanded Facility, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $1,700,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Awarded contract plus engineering, testing and inspection services.
Funding Source: IDOT Grant Funds 

Project Title: Canoe and kayak launch
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: January 2015
Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Expanded Facility, Resource Conservation
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes.  Water main replacement has been completed in the area of the parking lot.
Cost Estimate: $110,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate
Funding Source: DNR grant funds, community funds

P. 121 "Develop a bike route plan that connects the City's bike routes to external routes, such as the Grand Illinois Trail, and 

Construction of the final phase of the Galena River Trail.  Includes trail building and fencing to separate the trail from the live railroad.  

Construction is underway and is expected to be complete in the spring of 2018.  Two grants are secured for design and construction.

Systematic replacement of fire vehicles. (See Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan)

Two year commitment of $25,000 each year toward the Grant Park Restoration Project.  The project is a partnership with the Galena 

Foundation to improve and fully rehabilitate the park.

P. 115 "Develop a long term capital equipment and staffing plan for the Police and Fire Departments, based on population, tourism and 

No direct reference

Construction of a canoe, kayak launch and park south of the U.S. Highway 20 bridge and east of the Gazette parking lot.  The project is 

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A10

Page 45 of 71



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019-2023)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Replace Grant Park basketball court
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: November 2006
Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with Grant Park Masterplan projects.
Cost Estimate: $37,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Cost of similar projects
Funding Source: Grant or donor funded

Project Title: Replace lighting at Rec Park ball field 
Department: Parks
Date Submitted: December 2017
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $80,000
Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's Estimate
Funding Source: Park Fund

Project Title:
Department: Pool
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: High, Medium, Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility, Expanded Facility

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $148,500
Basis of Cost Estimate: Quotes and estimates
Funding Source: Pool Fund 

TURNER HALL

Project Title: Turner Hall maintenance and improvements
Department: Turner Hall
Date Submitted: January 2016
Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Resource Conservation, Operating Efficiency, Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Expanded Facility
Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year:
Coordination: No
Cost Estimate: $116,500
Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimates 
Funding Source: Turner Hall Fund, General Fund, grants

Yes, two year project
P. 121 "Continue to better utilize Turner Hall."

Numerous maintenance and improvement projects implemented over a multi‐year period.  The projects are more fully described in 

Appendix I, "Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan."   

Replace lighting on poles above Rec Park ball field.  Add lighting to allow sand volleyball courts to be used at night.

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital 

Replace deteriorated concrete court and two basketball goals in Grant Park.

Swimming pool maintenance and improvements

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital 

Improvement Plan."

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital 

Numerous maintenance and improvement projects implemented over a multi‐year period.  The projects are more fully described in 

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A11

Page 46 of 71



ATTACHMENT B. EVALUATION OF PROJECTS USING CRITERIA  (FY 2019‐2023) 

Health/Safety Systematic Deteriorated Equitable Operating New/Expanded Resource 

Dept. Project Description Risk Replacement Facility Provision Efficiency Coordination Facility Conservation

Public Works

DPW 5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A) X X X X X

DPW Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement X X X

DPW Paint Highway 20 bridge railings X X

DPW Replace approach structure on Meeker St pedestrian bridge X

DPW Prospect Street at Hill Street storm sewer replacement X

DPW Repair headwall at top of Green Street Steps X X  

DPW Gear Street sidewalk X X

DPW Commerce Street parking lot resurfacing X X X X

DPW Replace Green Street steps from Main to Bench X X

DPW Dewey Avenue bridge replacement X

DPW Additional parking at Recreation Park X X X

DPW Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone X

DPW Annual sidewalk/steps replacement program X X

DPW Wayfinding signage project X X X X

DPW Public Works Rolling Stock Plan X

Engineering

ENG Battery Storage for City Hall Solar  X X X

Flood Control

FLD Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan X X X

Water

WAT Update SCADA system and computer X X X X X

WAT Paint and upgrade water tower at Well #5 (Franklin Street) X X

WAT East Side Water System DSI‐Park Ave water main X X X

WAT East Side Water System DS2‐Highway 20 water main X X X

WAT East Side Water System DS3‐south pressure reduction station X X X

WAT East Side Water System WS1‐new well and pump house X X

WAT Water Rolling Stock Plan X X X

Criterion

CIP Evaluation Criteria
Page B 1

Page 47 of 71



Health/Safety Systematic Deteriorated Equitable Operating New/Expanded Resource 

  Project Description Risk Replacement Facility Provision Efficiency Coordination Facility Conservation

Sewer

SEW Replace controller for ultraviolet disinfection  X X

SEW West end diversion sewer X X X

SEW Inflow and infiltration study X X

SEW Bouthillier Street lift station/Park Avenue sewer main  X X X X

SEW Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement X X

SEW Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension  X X X

SEW Sewer Rolling Stock Plan X X X

 

Public Safety

POL New Police radios X X X

POL Police Rolling Stock Plan X X X

 

Fire

FD Paint exterior of building and replace windows X

FD Replace bunker gear X X X

FD Replace SCBA gear X X X

FD Training center classroom building X X X

FD Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan X X X

 

Culture and Recreation

PAR Grant Park Restoration X X X

PAR Construction of Galena River Trail: Phase 3 to Aiken X X

PAR Canoe and kayak launch X X

PAR Replace Grant Park basketball court X X X

PAR Replace lighting at Rec Park ball field  X X X

SP Swimming pool maintenance and improvements X X X X

TH Turner Hall maintenance and improvements X X X X X

CIP Evaluation Criteria
Page B 2

Page 48 of 71



ATTACHMENT C. RECOMMENDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019‐2023)

Estimated Grant FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 Total CIP 
Dept. Project Description Cost Funding? High Medium Low Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

Public Works
DPW 5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A) 1,589,700$              X 184,800$                 234,000$                338,100$                   365,700$                    467,100$                   1,589,700$                 
DPW Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement 320,000$                  X X 160,000$                 160,000$                    320,000$                    
DPW Paint Highway 20 bridge railings 25,000$                    X 25,000$                   25,000$                      
DPW Replace approach structure on Meeker St pedestrian bridge 35,000$                    X 35,000$                  35,000$                      
DPW Prospect Street at Hill Street storm sewer replacement 10,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                      
DPW Repair headwall at top of Green Street Steps 10,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                      
DPW Gear Street sidewalk 120,000$                  X 120,000$                 120,000$                    
DPW Commerce Street parking lot resurfacing 75,000$                    X 75,000$                  75,000$                      
DPW Replace Green Street steps from Main to Bench 30,000$                    X 30,000$                     30,000$                      
DPW Dewey Avenue bridge replacement 73,500$                    X X 73,500$                  73,500$                      
DPW Additional parking at Recreation Park 40,000$                    X 40,000$                     40,000$                      
DPW Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone 50,000$                    X 50,000$                  50,000$                      
DPW Annual sidewalk/steps replacement program 50,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                  10,000$                     10,000$                      10,000$                     50,000$                      
DPW Wayfinding signage project 106,500$                  X 50,000$                     20,000$                      20,000$                     90,000$                      
DPW Public Works Rolling Stock Plan 613,200$                  X 119,300$                 103,300$                165,300$                   103,800$                    121,500$                   613,200$                    

TOTAL 3,147,900$              639,100$                 740,800$                603,400$                   499,500$                   648,600$                  3,131,400$                 

Engineering
ENG Battery Storage for City Hall Solar  8,000$                      X X ‐$                             

TOTAL 8,000$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                           ‐$                            ‐$                             

Flood Control
FLD Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan 35,850$                    X 9,000$                     3,500$                    9,550$                       3,800$                        10,000$                     35,850$                      

TOTAL 35,850$                    9,000$                     3,500$                    9,550$                       3,800$                        10,000$                     35,850$                      
 

Water
WAT Update SCADA system and computer 10,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                      
WAT Paint and upgrade water tower at Well #5 (Franklin Street) 420,000$                  X 20,000$                   400,000$                    420,000$                    
WAT East Side Water System DSI‐Park Ave water main 375,000$                  X 375,000$                375,000$                    
WAT East Side Water System DS2‐Highway 20 water main 85,000$                    X 85,000$                     85,000$                      
WAT East Side Water System DS3‐south pressure reduction station 200,000$                  X 200,000$                    200,000$                    
WAT East Side Water System WS1‐new well and pump house 1,635,000$              X   ‐$                             
WAT Water Rolling Stock Plan 80,000$                    X 4,000$                     44,000$                  24,000$                     4,000$                        4,000$                       80,000$                      

TOTAL 2,805,000$              34,000$                   819,000$                109,000$                   204,000$                   4,000$                       1,170,000$                 

Sewer
SEW Replace controller for ultraviolet disinfection  16,000$                    X 16,000$                   16,000$                      
SEW West end diversion sewer 110,000$                  X 110,000$                 110,000$                    
SEW Inflow and infiltration study 20,000$                    X 10,000$                  10,000$                      
SEW Bouthillier Street lift station/Park Avenue sewer main  240,000$                  X ‐$                             
SEW Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement 110,000$                  X ‐$                             
SEW Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension  220,000$                  X 220,000$                    220,000$                    
SEW Sewer Rolling Stock Plan 40,000$                    X 22,000$                   12,000$                  2,000$                       2,000$                        38,000$                      
  TOTAL 756,000$                  148,000$                 22,000$                  2,000$                       222,000$                   ‐$                           394,000$                    

Priority

Recommended CIP
Page C1 

Page 49 of 71



Estimated FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 Total CIP 
Dept. Project Description Cost High Medium Low Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

Public Safety
POL New Police radios 12,500$                    X 12,500$                   12,500$                      
POL Police Rolling Stock Plan 149,800$                  X 35,000$                   37,150$                     38,250$                      39,400$                     149,800$                    
  TOTAL 162,300$                  47,500$                   ‐$                        37,150$                     38,250$                      39,400$                     162,300$                    

Fire
FD Paint exterior of building and replace windows 50,000$                    X 50,000$                  50,000$                      
FD Replace bunker gear 150,000$                  X 150,000$                    150,000$                    
FD Replace SCBA gear 150,000$                  X   ‐$                             
FD Training center classroom building 960,000$                  X   ‐$                             
FD Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan 633,000$                  X 483,000$                 ‐$                            483,000$                    
  TOTAL 1,943,000$              483,000$                 50,000$                  ‐$                           150,000$                   ‐$                           683,000$                    

Culture and Recreation
PAR Grant Park Restoration 50,000$                    X 25,000$                   25,000$                  50,000$                      
PAR Construction of Galena River Trail: Phase 3 to Aiken 1,700,000$              X X 1,700,000$             1,700,000$                 
PAR Canoe and kayak launch 110,000$                  X X ‐$                             
PAR Replace Grant Park basketball court 37,000$                    X X 32,000$                   32,000$                      
PAR Replace lighting at Rec Park ball field  80,000$                    X 80,000$                  80,000$                      
SP Swimming pool maintenance and improvements 148,500$                  X X X 64,000$                   71,000$                  11,000$                     ‐$                            ‐$                           146,000$                    

TOTAL 2,125,500$              1,821,000$             176,000$                11,000$                     ‐$                            ‐$                           2,008,000$                 

TH Turner Hall maintenance and improvements 116,500$                  X X X X 49,000$                   15,000$                  2,500$                       50,000$                      ‐$                           116,500$                    
TOTAL 116,500$                  49,000$                   15,000$                  2,500$                       50,000$                      ‐$                           116,500$                    

TOTAL 11,064,200$            3,221,600$             1,822,800$            765,050$                   1,163,750$                692,000$                  7,665,200$                 

Priority

Recommended CIP
Page C2 

Page 50 of 71



FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
Street Location Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

FY 18/19 (Year 1)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Dodge Street US Highway 20 to Mars Avenue 120,000$                 
Wight Street Dodge Street to High Street 19,500$                   

Blacktop Total 139,500$                 
Sales Tax Projects‐Sealcoat
Powder House Hill Rd Fifth Street to US Highway 20 34,300$                   

 Seal Coat Total 34,300$                   
Sales Tax Projects‐Alley Resurfacing
No alley resurfacing planned ‐$                         

Alley Total ‐$                         

Sales Tax Projects Total 173,800$                 
Other Sealcoat
Gateway Park  Entry road and parking lot 11,000$                   

Other Sealcoat Total 11,000$                   

TOTAL FY 18/19 184,800$                 
FY 19/20 (Year 2)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
West Street Franklin Street to High Street 60,500$                   
Fourth Street US Highway 20 to Lafayette Street 8,100$                     
Hill Street   High Street to Prospect Street  13,250$                   
Meeker/High Street/Soldiers Monument Rd Bench Street to Dodge Street 94,200$                   
Jackson Street High Street to Harrison 20,000$                   
Harrison Street Jackson Street to end 14,500$                   

Blacktop Total 210,550$                  
Sales Tax Projects‐Alley Resurfacing
Hill Street Alley Between Prospect Street and High Street (south from High Street) 6,750$                     

Alley Total 6,750$                      
Sales Tax Projects‐Sealcoat
South Bench Street Gear Street to south end 8,000$                     
Mississippi Street South Bench Street to South Dodge Street 6,000$                     
South Dodge Street Gear Street to Mississippi Street 2,700$                     

Sealcoat Total 16,700$                    

TOTAL FY 19/20 234,000$                  
FY 20/21 (Year 3)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Hickory Street US Highway 20 to Ridge Street  112,300$                  
Alexander Street Entire street 18,200$                     
High Street US Highway 20 to South Street 62,000$                     
Elk Street High Street to Dodge Street to end near West Street 19,400$                     
West Street US Highway 20 to Gear Street to city limits 114,800$                  

Sales Tax Projects Total 326,700$                   
Sales Tax Projects‐Alley Resurfacing
No alley resurfacing planned ‐$                           

Alley Total ‐$                            
Sales Tax Projects‐Sealcoat
Boggess Street Fifth Street to US Highway 20 11,400$                     

Sealcoat Total 11,400$                     

TOTAL FY 20/21 338,100$                   
FY 21/22 (Year 4)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
High Street Spring Street to Gear Street 36,700$                  
Shadow Bluff Drive Entire street 41,600$                  
Timp 1 Subdivision  Jupiter Drive, Saturn Drive, Domino Lane, Apollo Drive 182,800$                
West Street Ridge Street to Dodge Street 98,400$                  

Blacktop Total 359,500$                 
Sales Tax Projects‐Alley Resurfacing  
No alley resurfacing planned   ‐$                             

Alley Total ‐$                              
Sealcoat
No sealcoating planned ‐$                             

Sealcoat Total ‐$                              

Sales Tax Projects Total 359,500$                 
Other Sealcoat
Meeker Street Parks Department Yard 6,200$                    

Other Sealcoat Total 6,200$                     

TOTAL FY 21/22 365,700$                 

FY 22/23 (Year 5)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Powder House Hill Road Fifth Street to US Highway 20 214,000$                       
Hill/Bridge/Elm Street Franklin Street to Winnebago Drive 120,000$                       

Blacktop Total 334,000$                       
Alley Resurfacing
No alley resurfacing planned ‐$                                

Alley Total ‐$                                
Sealcoat
No sealcoating planned ‐$                                

Sealcoat Total ‐$                                

Sales Tax Projects Total 334,000$                       
Other Blacktop Projects
Industrial Drive US Highway 20 to Technical Drive 56,300$                         
Technical Drive Chetlain Lane to Industrial Drive 76,800$                         

Other Blacktop Projects Total 133,100$                       

TOTAL FY 22/23 467,100$                       

1,589,700$  

APPENDIX A:  5‐YEAR STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (FY 2019‐2023)

TOTAL CIP COST

5-Year Street Improvement Program
APX. A

Page 51 of 71



West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St
Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Satu
rn 

Ln

S
t

St

St

St

Dr
St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

Vi
ew

 C
t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

r

NBlackjackRd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Tra
il

WStag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak
  S

t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Po
pl

ar

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2018-2019

LEGEND

GEAR ST. RECONSTRUCTION

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

Page 52 of 71



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

APPENDIX A1

FY 2019-2020

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St
Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Satu
rn 

Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

Vi
ew

 C
t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

r

NBlackjackRd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Tra
il

WStag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak
  S

t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Po
pl

ar

BLACKTOP SURFACING ALLEYS

Page 53 of 71



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2020-2021

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St
Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Satu
rn 

Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

Vi
ew

 C
t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

r

NBlackjackRd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Tra
il

WStag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak
  S

t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Po
pl

ar

SEALCOAT SURFACING STREETS

Page 54 of 71



West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St
Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Satu
rn 

Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

Vi
ew

 C
t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

r

NBlackjackRd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Tra
il

WStag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak
  S

t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Po
pl

ar

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2021-2022

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

OTHER SEALCOAT

Page 55 of 71



West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St
Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Satu
rn 

Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

Vi
ew

 C
t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

r

NBlackjackRd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Tra
il

WStag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak
  S

t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Po
pl

ar

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2022-2023

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

OTHER BLACKTOP

Page 56 of 71



Estimated

Map Surface (PASER) Resurfacing Square Surfacing Construction 

Location Alley Location Description Material Condition Material Feet Cost Priority Year

A Between Prospect and High (from Green to Washington) Asphalt 2 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 11,000    32,700$           1 Complete

B Between Prospect and High (south of Green Street) Asphalt 6 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 13,000    19,300$           10 2020‐21

C Between Prospect and High (south of Hill Street) Asphalt 5 Patch & 1‐2" Asph. O.L. or Patch & Crack Seal? 3,900      6,750$             9 2019‐20

D Between Elk and Hill (from Prospect to High) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 8,700      26,000$           3 Complete

E North of Franklin (between Driscoll and Hickory) Asphalt 2 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 5,400      7,300$             6 Complete

F Between Elk and Hill (from Dodge to High) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 10,300    30,650$           2 Complete

G Between Franklin and Bridge (from Division to Hickory) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 7,300      7,300$             5 Complete

H Between Main and Bench (north of Hill Street) Gravel 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 4,300      12,800$           4 Complete

I Between Park and Third (South of US 20) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 3,400      NA Private

J Between Park and Third (from Lafayette to US 20) Asphalt 4 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 6,600      11,400$           8 Complete

K Between Park and Third  (from Jefferson to Madison) Asphalt 3 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 10,200    17,700$           7 2019‐20

TOTAL 171,900$    

NOTE:  Cost estimates are based on at least 30‐50% of work being completed at same time.  Otherwise, mobilization costs for single work items will increase cost.

APPENDIX A2:  ALLEY IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2013‐2021)

Based on Condition Assessment Conducted February 7, 2012

 5-Year Alley Improvement Plan
APX. A2

Page 57 of 71



FY 2008‐09 FY 2009‐10 FY 2009‐10 FY 2010‐11 FY 2010‐11 FY2011‐12 FY2012‐13 FY 2013‐14 FY 2014‐15 FY 2015‐16 FY 2016‐17 FY 2017‐18

Improvement Bouthillier Street Dewey Avenue Jackson Street Pre‐ERP & ERP Main Street, 

Meeker Street

Main Street,  Gear 

Street,  Flood Pumps

Downtown 

Flood Pumps

Downtown 

Flood Pumps

Park Avenue Kelly Lane, Alleys, 

Bench Street Repairs

Field, Hill, Elk, N. 

West, Division, South 

Bench Street

Poplar, N. Division, 

Clay, + 7

Total

X  X X X X

X  X X

X  X X

X  X
X 

X

X  X X

Engineering 
 X   X  X  X X

Construction Sub‐Total    

Contingency (5%)    

$          746,476  $            84,956  $                    127,090   $                    330,615  $                    207,200  $            4,121,792 

 

$            34,270  $                     ‐    $                               ‐     $                               ‐    $                               ‐    $                524,048 

TOTAL PROJECT COST  $                630,758   $           495,064   $            369,541   $          554,305   $          885,615   $                    152,800   $            27,150   $          780,746   $            84,956   $                    127,090   $                    330,615   $                    207,200   $            4,645,840 

Notes:

Completed Projects

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ Poor)2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ Poor)2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ Poor)

X

 X 

4 (Fair)

 X 

 X 

 X 

 $           398,068   $            292,476 

 $               77,065 

 $            27,150 

 $            51,784 

 $                    152,800 

Interest Expense    $                130,258   $          133,674  $              96,996 

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL  $          751,941  $                500,500   $          502,521 

 X 

Street (Rating) Condition 3‐4 (Poor‐Fair) 2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)
Street Construction

 X 

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

 3‐4 (Poor‐Fair) 4 (Fair)

 X   X 

 X 

 X 

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

Water 

Sanitary Sewer

 X 

 X 

 X 

Curb & Gutter
 X   X  X   X 

Sidewalk

Storm Sewer

 X 

 $                     ‐   

 X 

4 (Fair)

Completed Projects

APPENDIX B:  NON‐HOME RULE SALES TAX (1/2%) STREET & INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM

$                               ‐   

1. Street Condition: Based on PASER rating system: 1 - Failed, 2 - Very Poor, 3 - Poor, 4 - Fair, 5 - Fair, 6 - Good, 7 - Good, 8 - Very Good, 9 - Excellent and 10 - Excellent
2.  Street Surface: all streets to be blacktop unless otherwise noted
3.  The IDOT has indicated that the Gear Street resurfacing will be included in the US 20 project.  The surfacing cost is excluded from the Gear Street project cost.
4.  Interest expense assumes borrowing at 4.85% interest for 10 years.
5.  ERP = Emergency Street Repair Program grant from the Illinois Department of Transportation 

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax Streets Program: Completed Projects
APX. B

Page 58 of 71



Year‐End Fund Balance 2008‐09* 2009‐10* 2010‐11* 2011‐12* 2012‐13* 1013‐14* 2014‐15* 2015‐16* Continued

Below

Fund Balance  $190,949 $268,873 $454,405 $481,677 $843,873 $229,568 $254,534 $268,844

Year‐End Fund Balance 2016‐17* 2017‐18 2018‐19 2019‐20 2020‐21 2021‐22 2022‐23 2023‐24 2024‐25

Fund Balance  $115,564 $42,374 $39,985 $54,781 $51,754 $68,694 $111,914 $519,914 $927,914

Notes:
* Actual audited fund balance.  All other years are projected based on proposed CIP expenditures.

APPENDIX C: STREET IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX FUND  

PROJECTED YEAR‐END FUND BALANCE 

Fiscal Year

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax: Projected Fund Balance
APX. C

Page 59 of 71



APPENDIX D. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK AND EQUIPMENT PLAN (FY 2019‐2023)

Total FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 Total CIP 
Year Rolling Stock Replace With Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost 

1961 125 Mobile Air Compressor ‐$           ‐$          
1991 Brush Chipper ‐$           ‐$          
2005 John Deere 410 Backhoe ‐$           ‐$          
2007 Sterling 10 Ton Dump w/ Plow Same Medium 80,000$     80,000$     80,000$    
2008 Tymco Street Sweeper Same Low 145,000$   15,000$      130,000$   145,000$  
2011 International 10 Ton Dump w/ Plow/Spreader Same Low 85,000$     85,000$     85,000$    
2011 Chevy 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader Same High 70,000$     70,000$      70,000$    
2012 Ford 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader/Dump ‐$           ‐$          
2014 Chevy 1 Ton with Plow/Spreader/Dump Same Low 80,000$     80,000$     80,000$    
2014 Case Mini Excavator ‐$           ‐$          
2015 Ford 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader/Dump   ‐$           ‐$          
2015 748 John Deere Mower Same Medium 22,000$     11,000$      11,000$     22,000$    
2015 285 John Deere Z‐Turn Mower Same Medium 22,000$     11,000$     11,000$     22,000$    
2015 Articulating Boom Mower ‐$          
2016 3/4 Ton Ford Pickup w/ Plow  ‐$          
2016 Case 621 End loader w/ Backhoe (50% Flood Control) Same High 34,500$     11,000$      11,500$     12,000$     34,500$    
2016 Brush grapple bucket ‐$          
2016 Bat wing mower attachment for tractor ‐$          
2017 748 John Deere Mower Same Medium 11,000$     11,000$     11,000$    
2017 John Deere 320 Skid Loader (leased) (Flood Control) Same High 18,600$     3,500$        3,500$       3,800$       3,800$       4,000$       18,600$    
2017 John Deere 6145 Tractor (50% Parks) Same High 45,100$     8,800$        8,800$       9,000$       9,000$       9,500$       45,100$    
2017 Dodge Ram 1 Ton w/ Plow and Spreader
2018 Dodge 3/4 Ton Pickup (Parks)

TOTAL 613,200$   119,300$    103,300$   165,300$   103,800$   121,500$   613,200$  

Priority

High

Medium

Low

 

A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete the project as soon as possible. 

Current Stock Replacement Stock

Description

Public Works Rolling Stock Plan
APX. D

Page 60 of 71



APPENDIX E. FIRE DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2019‐2023)

Total FY18/19 FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 Total CIP 
Rolling Stock Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost*

Replace Aerial Truck High 483,000$                483,000$                483,000$               

Replace Pumper Truck Medium 150,000$                ‐$                        

TOTAL 633,000$                483,000$                ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                    ‐$              483,000$               

Note:
* The cost of some vehicle purchases are shared with the Galena Rural Fire District.

Priority

High

Medium

Low

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete the project as 

soon as possible. 

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

Description

*  The aerial truck was prepaid in FY 2017‐18.  The CIP cost for the aerial truck in FY 2018‐19 is the repayment of interfund loans from the Sewer Fund and the General Fund.

Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan
APX. E

Page 61 of 71



APPENDIX F.  POLICE DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2019‐2023)

Total FY18/19 FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 Total CIP 
Rolling Stock Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost 

Replace oldest squad with new model High 35,000$             35,000$            35,000$                           
Replace oldest squad with new model High 37,150$             37,150$           37,150$                           
Replace oldest squad with new model High 38,250$             38,250$            38,250$                           
Replace oldest squad with new model High 39,400$             39,400$           39,400$                           

TOTAL 149,800$           35,000$           ‐$                  37,150$           38,250$            39,400$           149,800$                        

Notes:
1.   An inflation factor of 3% per year has been applied.
2.  All police vehicle costs are General Fund obligations.
3.   Starting in FY 09, an estimated $4,000 per year from court fines would be dedicated to vehicle purchases. 

Priority

High

Medium

Low A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

Description

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete the 

project as soon as possible. 

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

Police Department Rolling Stock Plan
APX. F

Page 62 of 71



APPENDIX G.  WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2019‐2023)

Total FY18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 Total CIP 
Year Rolling Stock Replace With Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost*

1984 GMC spreader truck Same ‐$                   
1996 New Holland LX665 skid steer Same Medium 20,000$     4,000$     4,000$         4,000$         4,000$         4,000$         20,000$             
2001 Sniper 747‐4000R trailer jet Same ‐$                   
2006 3/4 Ton Dodge Ram Same
2007 Chevy 3/4 ton pickup (red) Same Medium 20,000$     20,000$      20,000$             
2012 Chevy 3/4 ton w/ utility box/plow 3/4 Ton/plow/box Medium 40,000$     40,000$       40,000$             
2015 Ford 3/4 ton with utility box Same ‐$                   

‐$                   
TOTAL 80,000$     4,000$     44,000$       24,000$      4,000$         4,000$         80,000$             

Water Cost (1/2 of TOTAL) 40,000$     2,000$     22,000$       12,000$      2,000$         2,000$         40,000$             
Sewer Cost (1/2 of TOTAL)  40,000$     2,000$     22,000$       12,000$      2,000$         2,000$         40,000$             

Current Stock Replacement Stock

Water and Sewer Rolling Stock Plan
APX. G

Page 63 of 71



Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 17/18 Medium Private family changing room/handicap accessible $1,500 Pre‐Season 2018

2 FY 17/18 Low New pool baskets /shelves /small lockers $1,000 Pre‐Season 2018

FY 17/18 (CURRENT YEAR) TOTAL $2,500

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 18/19 High Kiddy pool resurfacing $30,000 Fall 2018

2 FY 18/19 High Kiddy pool features: new slide & water arch $20,000 Fall 2018

2 FY 18/19 Medium Oversized umbrellas for Kiddy Pool Area $8,000 Fall 2018

3 FY 18/19 Medium Storage shed for chlorine and chemicals $5,000 Fall 2018

2 FY 18/19 Low Protection and slide fast surface annually $1,000 Pre‐Season 2018

FY 18/19 TOTAL $64,000

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 19/20 High Sand Blast and Resurface Entire Pool Vessel $60,000 Pre‐Season 2018

1 FY 19/20 Low Protection and slide fast surface annually $1,000 Pre‐Season 2019

2 FY 19/20 High New water features or other pool enhancement $10,000 Fall 2020

FY 19/20 TOTAL $71,000

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 20/21 Low Protection and slide fast surface annually $1,000 Pre‐Season 2020

2 FY 20/21 High New water features or other pool enhancement $10,000 Fall 2021

FY 20/21 TOTAL $11,000

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 21/22 No projects identified $0

FY 21/22 TOTAL $0

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 22/23 No projects identified $0

FY 22/23 TOTAL $0

TOTAL 5‐YEAR PLAN $148,500

FUTURE PROJECTS Project Estimated Cost

  New large waterslide $120,000

APPENDIX H:  SWIMMING POOL MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2019‐2023)

Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan 
APX. H

Page 64 of 71



Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 17/18 Medium Floor refinishing (full sanding) $17,800 Galena Foundation *actual

2 FY 17/18 Medium Fly Loft (exterior tuck pointing) $28,190 Galena Foundation *actual

3 FY 17/18 Medium Fly Loft (interior insulation phase) $22,500

FY 2017‐18 (CURRENT YEAR) TOTAL $68,490

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 18/19 Medium Energy efficiency projects / upgrades / emergency repairs $10,000

2 FY 18/19 High Security cameras and monitoring system $4,000

3 FY 18/19 High Sprinkler system repair $15,000

4 FY 18/19 High New boiler $20,000

FY 2018‐19 TOTAL $49,000

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 19/20 Medium Energy efficiency projects / upgrades / emergency repairs $15,000

FY 2018‐19 TOTAL $15,000

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 20/21 Medium Floor refinishing (wax coat only) $2,500  

FY 2020‐21 TOTAL $2,500

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 21/22 Medium Energy efficiency projects / upgrades / emergency repairs $15,000

2 FY 21/22 Medium New stage curtains $35,000

FY 2012‐22 TOTAL $50,000

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 22/23   No projects identified $0

FY 2022‐23 TOTAL $0

TOTAL 5‐YEAR PLAN $116,500

FUTURE PROJECTS Project Estimated Cost

Tuckpointing remainder of building $100,000 Galena Foundation?

Building addition and remodel with kitchen, bathrooms & storage $500,000 Fundraising   

APPENDIX I:  TURNER HALL MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

(FY 2019‐2023)

Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan
APX. I

Page 65 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1

Input Dates: 12/12/2017 - 12/31/2017 Dec 21, 2017  10:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)

121517 1 Invoice POOL/PHONE 12/15/2017 41.63 59.55.552.00

121517 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/PHONE 12/15/2017 45.60 01.41.552.00

121517 3 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/PHO 12/15/2017 41.87 22.22.552.00

121517 4 Invoice EMS/PHONE 12/15/2017 41.63 22.22.552.00

121517 5 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 12/15/2017 224.38 01.21.552.00

121517 6 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/PHO 12/15/2017 41.34 22.22.552.00

121517 7 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/PHON 12/15/2017 315.78 01.13.552.00

121517 8 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL/PHON 12/15/2017 41.63 20.25.515.00

121517 9 Invoice FINANCE/PHONE 12/15/2017 42.66 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 836.52

BARD MATERIALS CENTRAL REGION (119788)

300846 1 Invoice DOG KENNEL 11/30/2017 295.50 01.41.514.08

Total BARD MATERIALS CENTRAL REGION (119788): 295.50

CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840)

121517 1 Invoice RENTLY 12/15/2017 30.00 01.13.511.03

121517 2 Invoice LIPTAK DIGITAL BACKUP 12/15/2017 279.00 01.13.512.04

121517 3 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 12/15/2017 94.97 01.13.651.02

121517 4 Invoice TRAINING 12/15/2017 41.24 01.16.563.00

121517 5 Invoice CARDS 12/15/2017 35.64 01.21.554.00

121517 6 Invoice EXCHANGE ON LINE 12/15/2017 231.07- 51.42.929.00

121517 7 Invoice MAINTENANCE 12/15/2017 86.55 58.54.511.00

121517 8 Invoice RENTLY 12/15/2017 30.00 58.54.532.00

121517 9 Invoice CHAIRS 12/15/2017 177.62 58.54.553.00

121517 10 Invoice THEATER BULBS 12/15/2017 90.81 58.54.654.01

121517 11 Invoice WARNING LIGHT 12/15/2017 79.99 59.55.929.00

Total CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840): 714.75

CARGILL, INC. (119097)

2903800078 1 Invoice SALT 12/14/2017 1,348.94 01.41.614.07

Total CARGILL, INC. (119097): 1,348.94

CHRISTOPHER FYE & ASSOC., PC (119093)

11817.03 1 Invoice ARCHITECTURAL FEES/ 12/08/2017 2,320.00 01.13.511.03

Total CHRISTOPHER FYE & ASSOC., PC (119093): 2,320.00

CIVIL MATERIALS (120397)

110624 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 12/14/2017 202.27 01.41.614.04

110625 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 12/14/2017 1,620.42 01.41.514.06

Total CIVIL MATERIALS (120397): 1,822.69

CRITICAL REACH (120214)

18-784 1 Invoice ANNUAL FEE 2018 12/05/2017 145.00 01.21.652.03

Total CRITICAL REACH (120214): 145.00

Page 66 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2

Input Dates: 12/12/2017 - 12/31/2017 Dec 21, 2017  10:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

DIXON, R.K. (1)

1845720 1 Invoice COPIES MADE 12/11/2017 201.68 01.13.579.00

Total DIXON, R.K. (1): 201.68

DRIVE LINE, INC. (285)

228649 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 12/11/2017 298.70 17.52.514.00

Total DRIVE LINE, INC. (285): 298.70

DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631)

128473 1 Invoice FIRE EXTRINGUISHER M 11/21/2017 38.50 01.13.511.03

Total DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631): 38.50

DUBUQUE HOSE & HYDRAULICS (183)

526698 1 Invoice 07 STERLING 12/08/2017 20.42 01.41.613.05

Total DUBUQUE HOSE & HYDRAULICS (183): 20.42

ELITE PLUMBING (120136)

5243 1 Invoice MAINTENANCE 12/07/2017 25.00 01.13.511.06

Total ELITE PLUMBING (120136): 25.00

GALENA BREWING COMPANY (119754)

121517 1 Invoice REFUND OF LICENSE FE 12/15/2017 50.00 01.11.912.00

Total GALENA BREWING COMPANY (119754): 50.00

GALENA CHRYSLER (82)

6285 1 Invoice TRUCK REPAIR 11/07/2017 130.00 01.41.613.12

68842 1 Invoice SQUAD 4 MAINTENANCE 11/08/2017 35.86 01.21.513.06

Total GALENA CHRYSLER (82): 165.86

GALENA GAZETTE (34)

00058840 1 Invoice GEAR STREET PROJECT 12/06/2017 116.85 01.41.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 116.85

GALENA MINI WEDDINGS (120494)

121117 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 12/11/2017 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total GALENA MINI WEDDINGS (120494): 200.00

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)

121517 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 12/15/2017 290.00 01.13.511.07

121517 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  12/15/2017 270.00 01.13.511.08

121517 3 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 12/15/2017 258.50 01.13.511.08

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 818.50

Page 67 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3

Input Dates: 12/12/2017 - 12/31/2017 Dec 21, 2017  10:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)

121517 1 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  12/15/2017 4,361.00 01.218.0

121517 2 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  12/15/2017 396.00 01.218.0

121517 3 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 12/15/2017 31,104.45 01.13.451.00

121517 4 Invoice WESTEMEIER/INSURAN 12/15/2017 1,141.60 78.32.464.02

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 37,003.05

HUTMACHER JR., RICKY (120493)

121417 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 12/14/2017 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total HUTMACHER JR., RICKY (120493): 200.00

IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260)

69811 1 Invoice BIKE TRAIL DESIGN 11/30/2017 1,059.03 17.52.815.03

Total IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260): 1,059.03

JDWI (235)

42699 1 Invoice SR CIT TRANSPORT 11/30/2017 833.00 01.13.542.00

Total JDWI (235): 833.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)

121517 1 Invoice ELECTRIC/STREET LIGH 12/15/2017 557.02 15.41.572.00

121517 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 12/15/2017 345.91 01.41.571.01

121517 3 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 12/15/2017 166.13 17.52.571.01

121517 4 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 12/15/2017 82.20 22.22.576.01

121517 5 Invoice POOL/ELECTRIC 12/15/2017 244.54 59.55.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 1,395.80

JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121)

121417 1 Invoice VACATION RENTAL INSP 12/14/2017 150.00 01.16.546.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121): 150.00

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)

121517 1 Invoice clothing 12/15/2017 462.91 01.41.579.02

121517 2 Invoice EQUIP MAINTENANCE 12/15/2017 245.53 17.52.514.00

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 708.44

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)

9305432514 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 12/05/2017 255.11 01.41.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 255.11

LEIBOLD'S  AUTO & DIAGNOSTIC (119383)

30826 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 11/29/2017 50.00 17.52.514.00

Total LEIBOLD'S  AUTO & DIAGNOSTIC (119383): 50.00

Page 68 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4

Input Dates: 12/12/2017 - 12/31/2017 Dec 21, 2017  10:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

LITHO SPECIALISTS (63)

IS248410 1 Invoice UTILITY BILLS 12/08/2017 1,280.00 52.43.553.00

Total LITHO SPECIALISTS (63): 1,280.00

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)

4026 1 Invoice INSURANCE CLAIM 07/12/2017 5,330.09 01.13.999.00

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 5,330.09

MAILFINANCE (119741)

N6884551 1 Invoice POSTAGE METER LEASE 12/11/2017 338.85 01.13.579.02

Total MAILFINANCE (119741): 338.85

MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38)

370254 1 Invoice COPIER MAINTENANCE 11/08/2017 93.84 22.22.512.00

Total MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38): 93.84

MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. (119653)

5362867 1 Invoice 2011 INT. DUMP 12/08/2017 192.12 01.41.613.06

Total MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. (119653): 192.12

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)

165825 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 12/01/2017 13,667.80 13.44.540.04

165825 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 12/01/2017 4,727.70 13.44.540.00

165825 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 12/01/2017 60.00 13.44.544.03

165825 4 Invoice DUMPSTER DISPOSAL F 12/01/2017 142.00 01.41.573.00

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 18,597.50

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)

3304011120 1 Invoice MONTHLY RATE FOR ST 12/01/2017 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

MUNICIPAL CLERKS OF IL (143)

121917 1 Invoice WINTER SEMINAR 12/19/2017 85.00 01.14.563.00

Total MUNICIPAL CLERKS OF IL (143): 85.00

MUTUAL WHEEL CO. (119575)

1344789 1 Invoice 07 STERLING 12/08/2017 179.38 01.41.613.05

Total MUTUAL WHEEL CO. (119575): 179.38

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)

121517 1 Invoice VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 12/15/2017 359.12 22.22.613.00

121517 2 Invoice SAW BLADE SLEEVE 12/15/2017 6.95 22.22.652.00

121517 3 Invoice SAWS 12/15/2017 2,338.10 22.22.840.00

Page 69 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5

Input Dates: 12/12/2017 - 12/31/2017 Dec 21, 2017  10:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 2,704.17

NICOR (151)

121517 1 Invoice GAS 12/15/2017 210.85 59.55.571.02

121517 2 Invoice GAS 12/15/2017 826.53 58.54.571.05

121517 3 Invoice GAS 12/15/2017 76.51 01.13.511.03

Total NICOR (151): 1,113.89

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)

121917 1 Invoice POSTAGE 12/19/2017 19.32 01.21.551.00

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 19.32

REDFEARN TREE SERVICE & NURS. (118895)

5999 1 Invoice CEMETERY PARK TREE 12/06/2017 303.00 17.52.820.06

Total REDFEARN TREE SERVICE & NURS. (118895): 303.00

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)

113017 1 Invoice FUEL 11/30/2017 606.20 01.41.655.00

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 606.20

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730)

120117 1 Invoice POSTAGE 12/01/2017 500.00 01.13.551.00

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730): 500.00

ULTRAMAX (119293)

166228 1 Invoice AMMUNITION 11/29/2017 629.00 01.21.652.02

Total ULTRAMAX (119293): 629.00

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)

121517 1 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/VERI 12/15/2017 76.02 22.22.652.00

121517 2 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 12/15/2017 75.10 01.21.537.00

9797253891 1 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  12/15/2017 38.01 01.21.652.03

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 189.13

W.S. DARLEY & CO. (119623)

17305056 1 Invoice SAW BLADE 11/17/2017 317.19 22.22.840.00

Total W.S. DARLEY & CO. (119623): 317.19

WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258)

122017 1 Invoice CHRISTMAS WREATH LI 12/20/2017 250.80 01.11.929.07

122017 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/20/2017 11.78 01.13.651.02

122017 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/20/2017 92.19 01.21.651.00

122017 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/20/2017 104.69 01.41.471.09

122017 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/20/2017 57.58 01.41.652.00

122017 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/20/2017 37.74 59.55.563.00

Page 70 of 71



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6

Input Dates: 12/12/2017 - 12/31/2017 Dec 21, 2017  10:30AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258): 554.78

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)

121517 1 Invoice TURNER HALL JANITORI 12/15/2017 350.00 58.54.536.00

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 350.00

WUBBEN, HANNAH (120495)

121517 1 Invoice RECERTIFICATION REIM 12/15/2017 100.00 59.55.511.01

Total WUBBEN, HANNAH (120495): 100.00

Grand Totals: 84,566.80

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 3118907

Vendor number hash - split: 5043599

Total number of invoices: 50

Total number of transactions: 91

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 84,566.80 84,566.80

Grand Totals: 84,566.80 84,566.80

Page 71 of 71


	00.00 Agenda 12.26.17
	01.0511 Minutes cc121117
	02.0512 Country Fair Contract
	03.0513 Waterworks Lease Amendment
	122617b
	Waterworks Lease Email
	Waterworks Lease 1995
	First Amendment to Waterworks Lease 120817

	04.0514 CIP Memo
	05.0514 CIP Draft 122617
	Cover 2018 Draft
	Text
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	A Appendix
	5-Year Street Improvement Program 2018-2023
	A2 Appendix
	B Appendix
	C Appendix
	D Appendix
	E Appendix
	F Appendix
	G Appendix
	H Appendix
	I Appendix

	06.0515 Warrants 12.26.17



